

Bibliography

Books

- Adams, James Truslow, ed. *Dictionary Of American History*. New York: Charles Scribner's Sons, 1940.
- Adler, Mortimer J., ed. *Annals of America, The*. 19 vols. Chicago: Encyclopedia Britannica, 1968.
- African American and American Indian Patriots of the Revolutionary War*. Washington, DC: National Society Daughters of the American Revolution, 2001.
- Allen, Richard. *The Life Experience and Gospel Labors of Rt. Rev. Richard Allen*. New York: Abingdon Press, 1960.
- Appendix to the Congressional Globe, 42nd Congress, 2nd Session*. Washington, DC: Congressional Globe Office, 1872.
- Aptheker, Herbert, ed. *Documentary History of the Negro People in the United States, A*. 4 vols. New York: Citadel Press, 1990.
- Bardolph, Richard. *The Negro Vanguard*. New York: Rinehart & Company, Inc., 1959.
- Barnard, William. *Dixiecrats and Democrats*. University, AL: University of Alabama Press, 1974.
- Biographical Directory of the American Congress 1774-1927*. Washington, DC: United States Government Printing Office, 1928.
- Blaine, James G. *Twenty Years of Congress: From Lincoln to Garfield*. 2 vols. Norwich: Henry Bill Publishing Company, 1886.
- Blake, W. O. *The History of Slavery and the Slave Trade, Ancient and Modern*. Columbus: J. & H. Miller, 1858.
- Brayton, Ellery M. *An Address upon the Election Law of South Carolina, and the Methods Employed to Suppress the Republican Vote*. Columbia: Wm. Sloane, 1889.
- Burnet, Matthias. *An Election Sermon, Preached at Hartford, on the day of the Anniversary Election, May 12, 1803*. Hartford: Hudson & Goodwin, 1803.
- Butterfield, Roger. *The American Past*. New York: Simon and Schuster, 1947.
- Chalmers, David. *Hooded Americanism: The First Century of the Ku Klux Klan, 1865-1965*. New York: Doubleday & Company, Inc., 1965.
- Calkins, Carroll C. ed. *The Story of America*. New York: The Reader's Digest Association, 1975.
- Catton, Bruce. *The Centennial History of the Civil War. Vol. 1. The Coming Fury*. New York: Doubleday & Company, Inc., 1961.
- Champagne, Anthony. *The Journal of Negro Education*, Vol. 42, No. 1, Winter 1973, pp.

58-63, "The Segregation Academy and the Law" by *Congressional Record, 84th Congress, 2nd Session*. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1956.

Civil Rights - 1957: Hearings Before the Subcommittee on Constitutional Rights of the Committee on the Judiciary United States Senate Eighty-Fifth Congress, First Session. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1960.

Cobb, Thomas R.R. *An Inquiry into the Law of Negro Slavery in the United States of America*. Vol. 1. Philadelphia: T. & J. W. Johnson & Co., 1858.

Coffin, Charles Carleton. *Drum-Beat of the Nation: The First Period of the War of the Rebellion from its Outbreak to the Close of 1862*. New York: Harper & Brothers, 1888.

Collins, Alan C. *The Story of American Pictures*. New York: Doubleday & Company, Inc, 1953.

Cook, Benjamin F. *History of the Twelfth Massachusetts Volunteers*. Boston: Twelfth Regiment Association, 1882.

Congressional Globe. 23rd-42nd Congress. Washington, DC: Congressional Globe Office, 1835-71.

Congressional Quarterly. Vol. 20. Washington, DC: Congressional Quarterly Service, 1965.

Congressional Record. 43rd-108th Congress. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office.

Constitution of the Pennsylvania Society for Promoting the Abolition of Slavery, and the Relief of Free Negroes, Unlawfully Held in Bondage, The. Philadelphia: Joseph James, 1787.

Debates and Proceedings in the Congress of the United States. 1st-18th Congress. Washington: Gales and Seaton, 1849-56.

Douglass, Frederick. *Frederick Douglass Autobiographies: Narrative of the Life of Frederick Douglass, an American Slave*. New York: The Library of America, 1996.

Douglass, Frederick. *The Frederick Douglass Papers*. Edited by John W. Blassingame and John R. McKivigan. 2-4 vols. New Haven: Yale University Press, 1991.

DuBois, W. E. Burghardt. *The Suppression of the African Slave-Trade to the United States of America*. New York: Social Science Press, 1954.

DuBois, W.E.Burghardt. *Black Reconstruction In America*. New York: The Free Press, 1998.

Dunbar, Alice Moore, ed. *Masterpieces of Negro Eloquence*. New York: Dover Publications, Inc., 2000.

Ebony Pictorial History of Black America. 3 vols. Nashville: The Southwestern Company, 1971.

Echoes From The South. New York: E. B. Treat & Co., 1866.

Elliot, Jonathan, ed. *The Debates of the Several State Conventions on the Adoption of the Federal Constitution*. 4 vols. Washington: Printed for the Editor, 1836.

Escott, Paul, and David Goldfield, ed. *Major Problems in the History of the American South*. Vol. 2. Boston: Houghton Mifflin, 1990.

Eubanks, W. Ralph. *Ever is a Long Time*. New York: Basic Books, 2003.

- Farrand, Max, ed. *The Records of the Federal Convention of 1787*. 3 vols. New Haven: Yale University Press, 1911.
- Finney, Charles G. *Lectures on Revivals of Religion*. New York: Fleming H. Revell Company, 1868.
- Flower, Frank *History of the Republican Party, Embracing its Origin, Growth and Mission, Together with Appendices of Statistics and Information Required by Enlightened Politicians and Patriotic Citizens*. Springfield: Union Publishing Company, 1884.
- Foner, Eric. *Reconstruction: America's Unfinished Revolution, 1863-1877*. New York: Harper & Row, 1988.
- Franklin, Benjamin. *The Papers of Benjamin Franklin*. Edited by William Willcox. Vol. 20. New Haven: Yale University Press, 1976.
- Freehling, William, and Craig Simpson, ed. *Secession Debated: Georgia's Showdown in 1860*. New York: Oxford University Press, 1992.
- Galphin, Bruce. *The Riddle of Lester Maddox*. Atlanta: Camelot Publishing Company, 1968.
- Garnet, Henry Highland. *Memorial Discourse: by Rev. Henry Highland Garnet, Delivered in the Hall of the House of Representatives, Washington City, D. C. on Sabbath, February 12, 1865*. Philadelphia: Joseph M. Wilson, 1865.
- Garson, Robert. *The Democratic Party and the Politics of Sectionalism, 1941-1948*. Baton Rouge: Louisiana State University Press, 1974.
- Graham, Andrew J., and Charles B. Collar, ed. *Pulpit and Rostrum: Sermons, Orations, Popular Lectures, &c., The*. New York: E. D. Barker, 1862.
- Hancock, John. *The Great Question for the People! Essays on the Elective Franchise; or, Who Has the Right to Vote?* Philadelphia: Merrihew & Son, 1865.
- Harper, James C. *Separate Schools for White and Colored with Equal Advantages; Mixed Schools Never!* Washington: F. & J. Rives & Geo. A. Bailey, 1872.
- Hart, Albert Bushnell. *The American Nation: A History, Slavery and Abolition*. New York: Harper & Brothers Publishers, 1906.
- Haskins, James. *Distinguished African American Political and Governmental Leaders*. Phoenix: Oryx Press, 1999.
- Headley, J. T. *The Great Rebellion; A History of the Civil War in the United States*. 2 vols. Hartford: American Publishing Company, 1866.
- Hill, J. J. *A Sketch of the 29th Regiment of Connecticut Colored Troops*. Baltimore, 1867.
- Hodgman, Stephen. *The Nation's Sin and Punishment*. New York: American News Company, 1864.
- Holy Bible, The.
- Hoogenboom, Ari. *The Presidency of Rutherford B. Hayes*. Lawrence: University Press of Kansas, 1988.

- Horn, Stanley. *Invisible Empire: The Story of the Ku Klux Klan 1866-1871*. New York: Gordon Press, 1972.
- House of Representatives Mis. Doc. No. 53, "Condition of Affairs in Mississippi". 40th Congress, 3rd Session, January 6, 1869.
- House of Representatives Report No. 16, "New Orleans Riots". 39th Congress, 2nd Session, February 11, 1867.
- House of Representatives Ex. Doc. No. 268, "Condition of Affairs in the Southern States, Message from the President of the United States". 42nd Congress, 2nd Session, April 19, 1872.
- House of Representatives Ex. Doc. No. 342, "General Orders – Reconstruction: Letter from the Secretary of War". 40th Congress, 2nd Session, July 18, 1868.
- House of Representatives Report No. 265, "Vicksburgh Troubles". 43rd Congress, 2nd Session, February 27, 1875.
- House of Representatives Mis. Doc. No. 154, "Testimony Taken by the Sub-Committee of Elections in Louisiana". Washington: Government Printing Office, 1870.
- House of Representatives Report No. 16, "New Orleans Riots". 39th Congress, 2nd Session, February 11, 1867.
- House of Representatives Report No. 92, "Affairs in Louisiana". 42nd Congress, 2nd Session, May 30, 1872.
- House of Representatives Mis. Doc. No. 52, "Condition of Affairs in Georgia". 40th Congress, 3rd Session, February 12, 1869.
- House of Representatives Report No. 2, "Affairs in Arkansas: Report by Mr. Poland". Washington: Government Printing Office, 1874.
- House of Representatives Mis. Doc. No. 111, "Elections in Alabama: Affidavits of Discharge from Employment". 40th Congress, 2nd Session, March 26, 1868.
- Hughes, Langston, Milton Meltzer, and C. Eric Lincoln. *A Pictorial History of Blackamericans*. New York: Crown Publishers, 1983.
- Hutson, James. *Religion and the Founding of the American Republic*. Washington, DC: Library of Congress, 1998.
- Jackson, Kenneth. *The Ku Klux Klan in the City 1915-1930*. Chicago: Ivan R. Dee, 1992.
- Jacoway, Elizabeth, and C. Fred Williams, ed. *Understanding the Little Rock Crisis*. Fayetteville: University of Arkansas Press, 1999.
- Johnson, Donald B, ed. *National Party Platforms, 1840-1976, Supplement 1980*. Champaign-Urbana: University of Illinois Press, 1982.
- Johnson, Edward A. *The School History of the Negro Race in America From 1619 to 1890, with a short introduction as to the origin of the race; also a short sketch of Liberia*. Raleigh: Edwards & Broughton, 1891.

- Jones, Absalom. *A Thanksgiving Sermon, Preached January 1, 1808, In St. Thomas's, or the African Episcopal Church, Philadelphia: on Account of the Abolition of the African Slave Trade.* *Journal of the House of Representatives of the United States of America.* Volume 63. Washington: Government Printing Office, 1866.
- Journal of the Senate of the United States of America.* Washington: Government Printing Office, 1863-69.
- Kaplan, Sidney. *The Black Presence in the Era of the American Revolution 1770-1800.* Washington: New York Graphic Society, LTD, 1973.
- Kennedy, Stetson. *After Appomattox: How the South Won the War.* University Press of Florida: 1995.
- Kingston, Mike, Sam Attlessey, and Mary G. Crawford. *Political History of Texas.* Austin: Eakin Press, 1992.
- Kirshon, John W., ed. *Chronicle of America.* New York: Chronicle Publications.
- Lamson, Peggy. *The Glorious Failure.* New York: W W Norton & Company, 1973.
- Lanman, Charles. *Dictionary of the United States Congress, and the General Public.* Hartford: T. Belknap and H. E. Goodwin, 1868.
- Loevy, Robert D., ed. *The Civil Rights Act of 1964: The Passage of the Law that Ended Racial Segregation.* Albany: State University of New York Press, 1997.
- Logan, Rayford, and Michael Winston, ed. *Dictionary of American Negro Biography.* New York: WW Norton & Company, 1982.
- Lossing, Benson, ed. *Harper's Encyclopaedia of United States History.* 10 vols. New York: Harper & Brothers, 1974.
- Lossing, Benson, ed. *Harper's Popular Cyclopaedia of United States History.* 2 vols. New York: Harper & Brothers, 1889.
- Lossing, Benson. *Our Country.* 6 vols. New York: James A. Bailey, 1895.
- Lowman, Michael, George Thompson and Kurt Grussendorf, ed. *United States History in Christian Perspective.* Pensacola: A Beka Book, 1996.
- Lynch, John R. *The Facts of Reconstruction.* New York: Neale Publishing Company, 1913.
- Lynch, Rep. John Roy speech at the 1884 Republican National Convention.
- Madison, James. *The Debates in the Federal Convention of 1787 Which Framed the Constitution of the United States of America.* Edited by Gaillard Hint and James Brown Scott. New York: Oxford University Press, 1920.
- Madison, James *The Papers of James Madison.* 10 vols. Edited by William T. Hutchinson and William M.E. Rachel. Washington: Langtree & O'Sullivan, 1840.
- Malone, Dumas, ed. *Dictionary of American Biography.* Volume 18. New York: Charles Scribner's Sons, 1936.

- McClellan, George. *McClellan's Own Story*. New York: Charles L. Webster & Company, 1887.
- McKee, Thomas Hudson. *The National Conventions and Platforms of All Political Parties, 1789-1905*. New York: Burt Franklin, 1971.
- McPherson, Edward. *The Political History of the United States of America, During the Great Rebellion*. Washington DC: Philp & Solomons, 1865.
- Michie, Peter. *General McClellan*. New York: D. Appleton and Company, 1901.
- Middleton, Stephen, ed. *Black Congressmen During Reconstruction*. Westport: Greenwood Press, 2002.
- Nell, William. *Services of Colored Americans in the Wars of 1776 and 1812*. Boston: Robert F. Wallcut, 1852.
- Nell, William. *The Colored Patriots of the American Revolution*. Boston: Robert F. Wallcut, 1855.
- Official Report of the Proceedings of the Twenty-Ninth Republican National Convention*. Republican National Committee: Dulany Vernay, Inc., 1968.
- Ogden, Frederic. *The Poll Tax In The South*. University, AL: University of Alabama Press, 1958.
- Olsen, Otto H., ed. *Reconstruction and Redemption in the South*. Baton Rouge: Louisiana State University Press, 1980.
- Ploski, Harry and James Williams, ed. *Negro Almanac: A Reference Work on the African American*. Detroit: Gale Research Inc., 1989.
- Porter, Dorothy. *Early Negro Writing*. Boston: Beacon Press, 1971.
- Public Acts of the State of Tennessee Passed at the Extra Session of the Thirty-Third General Assembly, for the Year 1861*. Nashville: E. G. Eastman & Co., 1861.
- Quarles, Benjamin. *The Negro in the American Revolution*. Chapel Hill: University of North Carolina Press, 1961.
- Ramsay, David. *Eulogium on Benjamin Rush*. Philadelphia: Bradford and Inskeep, 1813.
- Reports of the Committees of the House of Representatives, Made During the First Session Thirty-Ninth Congress, 1865-66, The*. Washington: Government Printing Office, 1866.
- Report of Joint Select Committee to Inquire Into the Condition of Affairs in the Late Insurrectionary States*. 13 vols. New York: AMS Press, 1968.
- Republican Campaign Edition for the Million*. Boston: John P. Jewett & Co., 1856.
- Richardson, James D. *A Compilation of the Messages and Papers of the Presidents, 1789-1897* 10 vols. Published by Authority of Congress, 1899.
- Rowland, Thomas. *George B. McClellan and Civil War History*. Kent: Kent State University Press, 1998.

- Schwartz, Bernard. *Statutory History of the United States, Civil Rights*. New York: Chelsea House Publishers, 1970.
- Sears, Stephen. W. *George B. McClellan the Young Napoleon*. New York: Ticknor & Fields, 1988.
- Sears, Stephen. W. *The Civil War Papers of George B. McClellan. Selected Correspondence, 1860-1865*. New York: Ticknor & Fields, 1989.
- Seip, Terry L. *The South Returns to Congress: Men, Economic Measures, and Intersectional Relationships, 1868-1879*. Baton Rouge: Louisiana State University Press, 1983.
- Senate Mis. Doc. 82, Part 2, "In the Senate of the United States". 51st Congress, 1st Session. Washington: Government Printing Office. February 11, 1890.
- Simkins, Francis, and Robert Woody. *South Carolina During Reconstruction*. Gloucester: Peter Smith, 1966.
- Smalley, Eugene. *A Brief History of the Republican Party*. New York: John B. Alden, 1885.
- Smith, Page. *Trial By Fire: A People's History of the Civil War and Reconstruction*. Vol. 5. New York: McGraw-Hill Book Company, 1982.
- Statutes at Large, Treaties, and Proclamations of the United States of America*. Boston: Little, Brown and Company.
- Sumner, Charles. *Speech of the Hon. Charles Sumner, of Massachusetts, on the Barbarism of Slavery, Delivered in the U. S. Senate, June 4th, 1860*. San Francisco: Towne & Bacon, 1860.
- Testimony Taken by the Joint Select Committee to Inquire into the Condition of Affairs in the Late Insurrectionary States*, 13 vols. Washington: Government Printing Office, 1872.
- Thornbrough, Emma Lou, ed. *Great Lives Observed: Booker T. Washington*. Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Prentice-Hall, Inc., 1969.
- Thorpe, Francis Newton, ed. *The Federal and State Constitutions, Colonial Charters, and Other Organic Laws of the States, Territories, and Colonies*. 7 vols. Washington, DC: Government Printing Office, 1909.
- Victor, Orville. *The History, Civil Political and Military, of the Southern Rebellion, From Its Incipient Stages to Its Close*. 2 vols. New York: James D. Torrey, 1861.
- Washington, Booker T. *The Story of the Negro. The Rise of the Race from Slavery*. 2 vols. New York: Doubleday, Page & Company, 1909.
- Washington, Booker T. *The Booker T. Washington Papers*. 14 vols. Edited by Louis Harlan and Raymond Smock. Chicago: University of Illinois Press, 1982.
- Webster, Noah. *Letters to a Young Gentleman Commencing His Education: To Which is Subjoined a Brief History of The United States*. New Haven: S. Converse, 1823.
- Weiss, Nancy. *Farewell to the Party of Lincoln. Black Politics in the Age of FDR*. Princeton: Princeton University Press, 1983.

- Wellman, Manly Wade. *Giant In Gray. A Biography of Wade Hampton of South Carolina.* New York: Charles Scribner's Sons, 1949.
- Wilson, James, and John Fiske, ed. *Appletons' Cyclopaedia of American Biography.* 6 vols. New York: D. Appleton and Company, 1888.
- Wilson, Joseph T. *The Black Phalanx: African American Soldiers in the War of Independence, the War of 1812, and the Civil War.* Hartford: American Publishing Company, 1889.
- Wilson, Woodrow. *A History of the American People.* 5 vols. New York: Harper & Brothers Publishers, 1902.
- Woodson, Carter G. *Negro Orators and Their Orations.* Washington, DC: The Associated Pub., Inc., 1925.
- Zangrando, Robert L. *The NAACP Crusade Against Lynching, 1909-1950.* Philadelphia: Temple University Press, 1980.

PERIODICALS

- Cleveland Leader, The*, Vol. XXIV, No. 4. (February 26, 1870).
- Ervin, Clark Kent. "Guess Who's at the Heart of the Silent Majority." *Christian Science Monitor*, (August 15, 1997).
- Fikac, Peggy. "Democrats Asking Selves, 'What now?'; They Look to Future." *San Antonio Express-News*, (November 7, 2002).
- Frank Leslie's Illustrated Newspaper*, New York, (April 30, 1870).
- Harper's Weekly*, July 23, 1859; November 12, 1864; February 18, 1865; April 28, 1866; August 25, 1866; September 1, 1866; May 25, 1867; October 3, 1868; November 6, 1869; October 19, 1872; August 12, 1876; October 21, 1876; September 25, 1880.
- Hingham Patriot, The*. Hingham, Massachusetts, (June 29, 1839).
- Klarman, Michael J. "The White Primary Rulings" *Florida State University Law Review*, Vol. 29 (2001).
- Koenig, David. "Democrats' Multiethnic 'Dream Team' Falters in Texas." *The Associated Press*, (November 11, 2002).
- National Anti-Slavery Standard*. "The South. The Rebel Perfidy in the Legislature. Colored Republicans Expelled." (September 26, 1868).
- New York Tribune*, "The Cipher Dispatches, Tribune Extra No. 44" (New York, 1879).
- Shay, Kevin. "Recent Election Shows Texas isn't Ready for Minority Governor." *The New York Beacon*, (November 20, 2002).
- West, Thomas G. "Was the American Founding Unjust? The Case of Slavery." *Principles*, (Spring/Summer 1992).
- Williams, Walter E. "Some Fathers Fought Slavery." *Creators Syndicate, Inc.*, (May 26, 1993).

ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS

“The Presidential Election. Vote For General McClellan.” 1864, from an original in our possession.

“The Republican Party: Its Mission to Save the Country from the Horrors of a New Rebellion.” 1874, from an original in our possession.

House of Representatives, 38th Congress, 1st Session, “A Bill to Establish a Bureau of [Emancipation,] Freedmen’s Affairs.” 1864, from an original in our possession.

U. S. Senate Bill 145, “A Bill to equalize the pay of soldiers in the United States army.” 1864, from an original in our possession.

“Amnesty Oath.” E. Baton Rouge, La. 1865, from an original in our possession.

Rebel Handbill. “Radical Members of the So. Ca. Legislature.” 1868, from an original in our possession.

“Rebel Members of the 1868 Democratic National Convention.” 1868, from an original in our possession.

“Tricks of the Republican Executive Committee Exposed: Ohio School System – Who are its Founders.” 1875, from an original in our possession.

“Politics and the School Question: Attitude of the Republican and Democratic Parties in 1876.” 1876, from an original in our possession.

“Why I Will Not Vote the Democratic Ticket.” c. 1880, from an original in our possession.

“Read Laws United States!”; citing the federal law passed on May 31, 1870, entitled “An Act to Enforce the Rights of Citizens of the United States to Vote in the Several States of this Union and for other Purposes.” 1880, from an original in our possession.

“Who’s A Democrat!” c. 1936 campaign piece, from an original in our possession.

From an original letter written by Mrs. Caroline Johnson and sold at auction by Historical Collection Auctions, on November 6th, 2003; a copy of the letter is in our possession.

COURT CASES

Plessy v. Ferguson, 163 U. S. 537 (1896).

Brown v. Board of Education, 347 U. S. 483 (1954).

Civil Rights Cases, 109 U. S. 3 (1883).

Dred Scott v. Sanford, 60 U. S. 393, 572-3 (1856).

Gomillion v. Lightfoot, 364 U. S. 339, 346-348 (1960).

Grovey v. Townsend, 295 U. S. 45, 55 (1935).

Harper v. Virginia Board of Elections, 383 U. S. 663 (1966).

Nixon v. Herndon, 273 U. S. 536 (1927).

South Carolina v. Katzenbach, 383 U. S. 301, 311 (1966).

WEBSITES

Africana: Gateway to the Black World (at <http://www.africana.com>).

AfricanAmericans.com (at <http://www.africanamericans.com>).

About (at <http://www.about.com>).

African American Registry (at <http://www.aaregistry.com>).

Alabama Department of Archives and History: Alabama Moments in American History (at <http://www.alabamamoments.state.al.us>).

Alabama Public Television (at <http://www.aptv.org>).

Bartleby.com (at <http://www.bartleby.com>).

Biographical Directory of the United States Congress (at <http://bioguide.congress.gov>).

BlackVoices.com (at <http://www.blackvoices.com>).

Cato Institute (at <http://www.cato.org>).

Center for Educational Reform (at <http://www.edreform.com>).

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (at <http://www.cdc.gov>).

CNN (at <http://www.cnn.com>).

Colorado College (at <http://www.coloradocollege.edu>).

Columbia Journalism Review (at <http://www.cjr.org>).

Congressional Black Caucus (at <http://www.house.gov/cummings/cbc/cbchome.htm>).

Democratic National Committee (at <http://www.democrats.org>).

Fact Monster (at <http://www.factmonster.com>).

Florida Center for Interactive Media (at <http://www.fcim.org>).

Freedmen's Bureau Online, (at <http://freedmensbureau.com>).

Furman University (at <http://www.furman.edu>).

The Gallup Organization (at <http://www.gallup.com>).

George Mason University (at <http://www.gmu.edu>).

Georgia Secretary of State (at <http://www.sos.state.ga.us>).

HarpWeek (at <http://www.harpweek.com>).

Harris Interactive (at <http://www.harrisinteractive.com>).

Harvard University Press (at <http://www.hup.harvard.edu>).

History of Jim Crow (at <http://www.jimcrowshistory.org>).

Infoplease (at <http://www.infoplease.com>).

Joint Center for Political and Economic Studies (at <http://jointcenter.org>).

Library of Congress (at <http://www.loc.gov>).

Louisiana, A History (at <http://www.louisianahistory.org>).

Louisiana Secretary of State (at <http://www.sec.state.la.us>).

Maryland State Archives (at <http://www.mdarchives.state.md.us>).

MyFlorida.com (at <http://www.myflorida.com>).

NationMaster.com (at <http://www.nationmaster.com>).

National Center for Education Statistics (at <http://nces.ed.gov>).

National Center For Policy Analysis (at <http://www.ncpa.org>).

National Constitution Center (at <http://www.constitutioncenter.org>).

National Park Service (at <http://www.nps.gov>).

Oberlin College (at <http://www.oberlin.edu>).

Office of the Clerk, U. S. House of Representatives (at <http://clerk.house.gov>).

Ohio Historical Society (at <http://dbs.ohiohistory.org>).

Ohio State University (at <http://www.osu.edu>).

Old Dominion University Libraries (at <http://www.lib.odu.edu>).

Our Georgia History (at <http://www.ourgeorgiahistory.com>).

PBS (at <http://www.pbs.org>).

Policy Review Online (at <http://www.policyreview.org>).

Project Gutenberg (at <http://www.gutenberg.net>).

Public Agenda (at <http://www.publicagenda.org>).

Republican National Committee (at <http://www.rnc.org>).

SHG Resources (at <http://www.shgresources.com>).

South Carolina Department of Archives and History (at <http://www.state.sc.us/scdah>).

Texas State Library & Archives Commission (at <http://www.tsl.state.tx.us>).

The Citadel (at <http://www.citadel.edu>).

The History Makers (at <http://www.thehistorymakers.com>).

The White House (at <http://www.whitehouse.gov>).

United States Senate (at <http://www.senate.gov>).

University of Georgia: GeorgiaInfo (at <http://www.cviog.uga.edu/Projects/gainfo>).

University of Houston: Digital History (at <http://www.digitalhistory.uh.edu>).

University of Missouri-Kansas City: School of Law (at <http://www.law.umkc.edu>).

University of Oregon (at <http://www.uoregon.edu>).

University of Texas at Austin: Handbook of Texas Online (at <http://www.tsha.utexas.edu/handbook/online>).

University of Virginia Library (at <http://fisher.lib.virginia.edu>).

USAToday (at <http://www.usatoday.com>).

U. S. Census Bureau (at <http://www.census.gov>).

United States Department of Justice (at <http://www.usdoj.gov>).

U. S. Department of State (at <http://www.state.gov>).

U. S. National Archives & Records Administration (at <http://www.archives.gov>).

White House Historical Association (at <http://www.whitehousehistory.org>).

World Book (at <http://www.worldbook.com>).

Yale University: The Avalon Project (at <http://www.yale.edu/lawweb/avalon>).

Zogby International (at <http://www.zogby.com>).